
City of Kelowna
Public Hearing

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, June 24, 2014

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

THE CHAIR WILL CALL THE HEARING TO ORDER:

1.(a)The purpose of this Hearing is to consider certain
bylaws which, if adopted, shall amend Kelowna 2030 -
Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 and Zoning
Bylaw No. 8000.

(b)All persons who believe that their interest in property is
affected by the proposed bylaws shall be afforded a
reasonable opportunity to be heard or to present written
submissions respecting matters contained in the bylaws
that are the subject of this hearing.  This Hearing is open to
the public and all representations to Council form part of
the public record.  A live audio feed may be broadcast and
recorded by Castanet.

(c)All information, correspondence, petitions or reports that
have been received concerning the subject bylaws have
been made available to the public.The correspondence
and petitions received after June 10, 2014 (date of
notification) are available for inspection during the course
of this hearing and are located on the information table in
the foyer of the Council Chamber.

(d)   Council debate on the proposed bylaws is scheduled
to take place during the Regular Council meeting after the
conclusion of this Hearing. It should be noted, however,
that for some items a final decision may not be able to be
reached tonight.

1



(e)   It must be emphasized that Council will not receive
any representation from the applicant or members of the
public after conclusion of this Public Hearing.

2. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the
Hearing was publicized.

3. Individual Bylaw Submissions

3.1 Bylaw No. 10962 (OCP14-0005) and Bylaw
No. 10963 (Z14-0006) - 235 Queensway Avenue,
1470 & 1476 Water Street, Portions of Mill Street &
Queensway Avenue, Westcorp Holyrood Inc.

5 - 95

Requires a majority of all members of Council
(5).

To amend the Official Community Plan in order to
change the Land Use Designations of part of the
properties from the Park - Major Park &  Open
Space Designation to the MXR - Mixed Use
(Residential/Commerical) Designation and to rezone
the subject properties from the C7 - Central
Business Commercial and P3 - Parks and Open
Space zones to the C7lp/rls - Central Business
Commercial (liquor primary/retail liquor sales) zone.

3.2 Bylaw No. 10972 (Z14-0014) - 890 Mayfair Road,
Henry & Ingrid Jenzen

96 - 112

To consider a proposal to rezone the subject
property by adding the 'c' designation to the RU1 -
Large Lot Housing zone in order to convert an
existing accessory building into a carriage house.

3.3 Bylaw No. 10973 (Z14-0015) - 2248 Abbott Street,
Susan Bennett

113 - 128

To consider a proposal to rezone the subject
property from the RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to
the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing zone which would
allow a duplex to be built on the subject property.

3.4 Bylaw No. 10960 (OCP13-0003) and Bylaw No.
10961 (Z13-0004) - 1800 Crosby Road, DRS Ventures
Ltd.

129 - 185

To amend the Official Community Plan in order to
change the future land use and zoning on a portion
of the subject property in order to accommodate a
12 lot development in the Glenmore area.

2



4. Termination

5. Procedure on each Bylaw Submission

(a)     Brief description of the application by City Staff
(Land Use Management);

(b)     The Chair will request that the City Clerk indicate
all information, correspondence, petitions or reports
received for the record.

(c)     The applicant is requested to make representation
to Council regarding the project and is encouraged to
limit their presentation to 15 minutes.

(d)     The Chair will call for representation from the
public in attendance as follows:

    (i)     The microphone at the public podium has been
provided for any person(s) wishing to make
representation at the Hearing.

     (ii)     The Chair will recognize ONLY speakers at the
podium.

     (iii)     Speakers are encouraged to limit their remarks
to 5 minutes, however, if they have additional
information they may address Council again after all
other members of the public have been heard a first
time.

(e)     Once the public has had an opportunity to
comment, the applicant is given an opportunity to
respond to any questions raised.  The applicant is
requested to keep the response to a total of 10 minutes
maximum.

(f)     Questions by staff by members of Council must be
asked before the Public Hearing is closed and not during
debate of the bylaw at the Regular Meeting, unless for
clarification.

(g)     Final calls for respresentation (ask three times). 
Unless Council directs that the Public Hearing on the
bylaw in question be held open, the Chair shall state to
the gallery that the Public Hearing on the Bylaw is closed.

3



Note:  Any applicant or member of the public may use
visual aids (e.g. photographs, sketches, slideshows, etc.)
to assist in their presentation or questions.  The computer
and ELMO document camera at the public podium are
available.  Please ask staff for assistance prior to your
item if required.

4



 

 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 4/28/2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (JM) 

Application: OCP14-0005 / Z14-0006 Owner: 
Westcorp Holyrood Inc 

Inc. No. A31452 

Address: 

235 Queensway Avenue, 1470 & 
1476 Water Street, Portions of 
Mill Street and Queensway 
Avenue 

Applicant: Westcorp Development 

Subject: Official Community Plan Amendment and Rezoning Applications   

Existing OCP Designation: 
MXR – Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial) 
PARK – Major Park & Open Space 

Proposed OCP Designation: MXR – Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial)   

Existing Zone: 

P3 – Parks and Open Space 
C7 – Central Business Commercial 
C7lp/rls - Central Business Commercial (Liquor Primary/ 
Retail Liquor Sales) 

Proposed Zone: C7lp/rls - Central Business Commercial (Liquor Primary/ 
Retail Liquor Sales) 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment No. OCP 14-0005 to amend Map 4.1 of the 
Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500, by changing the Future Land Use 
designation of: 

1. Part of the Mill Street Road Right-of-Way, being approximately 596m2 in area, located 
adjacent to 235 Queensway Avenue and 262 Bernard Avenue, Kelowna, BC 

2. Part of the Queensway Avenue Road Right-of-Way, being approximately 168m2 in area, 
located adjacent to 235 Queensway Avenue and 1470 Water Street, Kelowna, BC 

from the PARK – Major Park & Open Space designation to the MXR – Mixed Use 
(Residential/Commercial) designation, as shown on Map “A” attached to the Report of Land Use 
Management Department dated April 28, 2014, be considered by Council; 

AND THAT Council considers the Public Information Session public process to be appropriate 
consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the Local Government Act, as outlined in the 
Report of the Land Use Management Department dated April 28, 2014; 

5



OCP14-0005 / Z14-0006 – Page 2 

 
 

 

AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z14-0006 to amend City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
by changing the zoning classification of: 

1. Lot 1, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 2698, located at 1470 Water Street, Kelowna, BC 

2. Lot 2, District Lot 139, ODYD, Plan 2698, located at 1476 Water Street, Kelowna, BC 

3. Part of the Mill Street Road Right-of-Way, being approximately 596m2 in area, located 
adjacent to 235 Queensway Avenue and 262 Bernard Avenue, Kelowna, BC 

4. Part of the Queensway Avenue Road Right-of-Way, being approximately 168m2 in area, 
located adjacent to 235 Queensway Avenue and 1470 Water Street, Kelowna, BC 

from the C7 – Central Business Commercial and P3 – Parks and Open Space zones to the C7lp/rls – 
Central Business Commercial (liquor primary / retail liquor sales) zone, as shown on Map “B” 
attached to the Report of the Land Use Management Department dated April 28, 2014, be 
considered by Council; 

AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw and the Zone Amending Bylaw 
be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered in conjunction with 
Council’s consideration of a Development Permit and Development Variance Permit for the 
subject property; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
submission of a plan of subdivision consolidating the subject properties and closed road into one 
title; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch and the Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure being completed to their satisfaction; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the applicant 
entering into an encroachment agreement with the City to accommodate canopies, and a land 
agreement to accommodate the kaleidoscope projection, as described in the report from the 
Urban Planning Department, dated April 28, 2014; 

AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
conclusion of the road closure process, as described in the report from the Urban Planning 
Department, dated April 28, 2014. 

2.0 Purpose   

To consider a proposal to change the Official Community Plan Future Land Use designation and to 
Rezone portions of the subject properties in order to permit the development of an hotel tower 
including ancillary commercial retail, conference centre, and restaurant facilities. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

Urban Planning staff are supportive of the proposed Rezoning and OCP amendment application to 
facilitate the development of a signature hotel tower and supporting uses on the subject 
property.  

Both the OCP and the Downtown Plan support tower development on the site as part of a broader 
effort to encourage densification and increased activity in Kelowna’s downtown. The policy 
direction provided in these documents supports development of up to 19 storeys in the form of a 
signature building with a high quality of design.  

6



OCP14-0005 / Z14-0006 – Page 3 

 
 

 

The applicant team has come forward with a very strong proposal that meets the needs of the 
proponent, while responding creatively and thoroughly to the site’s contextual challenges. The 
result is an elliptical 24 storey tower containing 214 hotel units set within a five storey podium 
that contains vehicle parking wrapped by at-grade retail, a conference centre, and rooftop 
amenity areas.  

While each face of the podium responds to its own unique context, it is the development’s direct 
interface with Kerry Park that receives the greatest attention. Its massing steps down from 5 
storeys to 1 storey with tiered outdoor patios focused on a rotunda feature intended to function 
as a “lantern” at night on the waterfront. Uses at grade invite a high level of pedestrian activity, 
which will create an engaging environment for patrons of the development and for park users.  

The impacts of the development on Kerry and Stuart Parks will be positive, and will support the 
objectives of the OCP and Downtown Plan. The proposal is built to the westernmost lot line, 
therefore construction activity will have temporary construction impacts on portions of Kerry 
Park. Also, the shadowing from the proposed development has an effect on the adjacent 
parkland. The impact of the shadowing is worsened by the additional five (5) storeys of height 
requested by the applicant. Staff is working with the applicant team to provide mitigation for 
these impacts through improvements to Kerry Park in accordance with the City’s Kerry Park 
Concept Plan. Negotiations continue with staff with the aim of coming to agreement prior to 
Council consideration of the Development Variance Permit.  

As noted above, the height of the tower exceeds what was previously considered for the site by 5 
storeys, for a total of 24 storeys. In addition, three other very minor variances are requested by 
the applicant. Staff are not opposed to these requests; they will be considered together and in 
greater detail should Council support the land use. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

In 2009 Council tasked staff with the development of a plan to guide the development of the 
downtown into the future. Working with diverse interest groups over several years, the 
Downtown Plan was adopted by Council on February 27, 2012. The overall vision of the plan is a 
downtown that “will include areas where citizens choose to live, shop, play and congregate and 
where businesses choose to do business and where developers choose to develop”. To achieve 
this, the focal points of the plan are: 

1.  Making downtown more pedestrian friendly 

2. Increasing activity downtown 

3. Increasing the number of people living downtown 

4. Reducing crime/increasing safety 

5. Making it easier to park 

Within the context of its broader goals for the success of Kelowna’s downtown, the plan 
specifically contemplates building height. The Downtown Building Heights Map provides general 
maximum height guidance on a lot-by-lot basis, and expresses a form of development that 
generally increases height as buildings move away from the lake. On this map, the subject 
properties are noted as suitable for a maximum of 19 storeys in height. The policy direction from 
this plan has been transferred into the Official Community Plan and has been refined there. The 
subject site is specifically discussed in the OCP, which provides the following as a guideline to be 
used in the consideration of future development on the site: 

7



OCP14-0005 / Z14-0006 – Page 4 

 
 

 

“The former Willow Inn site at the corner of Queensway Avenue and Mill Street is 
significant given the site’s proximity to the waterfront and its high visibility. In order to 
achieve approval for up to 19 storeys on this site, any proposed development should be 
required to demonstrate that it gives careful consideration to view impacts from other 
parts of downtown, is a signature landmark building and that it meets a high standard of 
design excellence regarding aesthetics and building performance.”  

Using this direction, the applicant has engaged a series of architectural and landscape 
consultants to design the development to a quality that reflects the site’s prominence. Together, 
the applicant team has been very pro-active in working with City staff to ensure that issues are 
identified and requirements addressed as early as possible.  

As a component of their development, the applicant has requested that a portion of Queensway 
Avenue and the majority of Mill Street be closed and consolidated with their site (see attached 
Road Closure Plan). Should Council support the land use applications, staff will bring forward the 
road closure request for Council consideration. According to the applicant, the additional 
roadway lands are needed for the site in order to accommodate parking, which cannot be 
provided below grade due to the high water table. The developer has proposed to compensate 
the City for the land at market value.  

Due to a technical provision of the Zoning Bylaw, roads take on an equal share of the zoning of 
abutting land uses. In this instance, half of the Mill Street road right-of-way is zoned for 
commercial use, while the other half is zoned for park use. The same logic applies to the OCP 
Future Land Use designation, with half of the road right-of-way being designated for mixed use, 
and the other half for park. As a result of this, the proponent must apply to rezone and to amend 
the OCP for half of the Mill Street road right-of-way and a small portion of the Queensway 
Avenue road right-of-way such that the entire development site is zoned C7lp/rls - Central 
Business Commercial (Liquor Primary/Retail Liquor Sales) and designated MXR – Mixed Use 
(Residential/Commercial) in the OCP (see attached Maps ‘A’ and ‘B’).  

The development will interface directly with Kerry Park, which has recently undergone a concept 
site planning exercise with City staff and a landscape consultant. The Kerry Park Concept Plan 
was completed in September of 2013. However, no funding for its implementation has been 
included in the 2020 Capital Plan (refer to Section 3.0 discussion). 

In accordance with Council Policy No. 367, the applicant has completed a Public Information 
Session (see attached Community Consultation Summary). The session was held on Wednesday, 
March 12, 2014 from 3pm – 7pm at the Rotary Centre for the Arts. In preparation for the session, 
the applicant took out daily ads in local newspapers for two weeks in advance, and went door-to-
door in the downtown area providing flyers to businesses. Three large format development signs 
were also posted on the subject property, each of which identified the date, location and time 
for the information session. The applicant also maintains a website for the project. 

Over the course of the information session, the applicant recorded the attendance of 188 
members of the public. It is thought that this is an underestimation of attendance, as not all 
attendees signed in. Attendees were provided with a clipboard that held a survey for them to 
complete. 129 surveys were returned. Of the surveys returned, the responses were 
overwhelmingly positive, with only 13 negative responses submitted. Reponses noting support for 
the project were principally focused on the form and character of the proposed development, 
and on the increased level of activity that the project would bring. The responses submitted not 
in support noted concerns about height, proximity to lake, and whether the development is 
accessible for all socio-economic groups in Kelowna. 

8



OCP14-0005 / Z14-0006 – Page 5 

 
 

 

Finally, the proposal was reviewed by the City’s staff-led Advisory Design Team at its meeting of 
March 13, 2014. Overall, the feedback from staff on the design of the proposal was 
overwhelmingly positive, and no significant changes were suggested. 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing to develop a signature hotel tower on the subject property, including 
ancillary conference centre, commercial retail, and restaurant uses. Both the tower and podium 
components of the development are critical for different reasons, and each is discussed in detail 
separately below. This is followed by an analysis of the impacts of the development and the 
request for a road closure. 

The Tower: 

The design of the development has been driven by several key factors, of which its context is one 
of the most critical. Within the larger area of downtown Kelowna, from Clement Avenue in the 
north to Harvey Avenue to the south, the skyline of Kelowna features a number of towers, both 
existing and approved but not constructed. At the north side of downtown, the Waterscapes/Sky 
tower is the tallest existing tower at 26 storeys in height. The Discovery Point, Dolphins, and 
Grand Hotel towers are adjacent to this at 26, 17, and 11 storeys respectively. Within the central 
area of the downtown, tower height is somewhat lower, with the Downtown Lofts at 11 storeys, 
and the Madison at 15 storeys. A notable exception to this is the recently approved Monaco 
towers, which are designed at 18 and 26 storeys. Moving further south, an approved development 
on the 400 block of Bernard Avenue is 26 storeys in height.  

The proposed tower is 24 storeys in height, and contains of 214 rooms. As viewed from a 
distance, the proposed tower would be generally in keeping with the height of towers existing or 
approved, and would act as a bookend of sorts, anchoring Kelowna’s downtown. This proposal 
does exceed, by 5 storeys, the maximum height of development considered for the site in the 
OCP and the Downtown Plan. In support of this request, the applicant noted that “the additional 
5 storeys were needed in order to reach the number of hotel rooms required to make the hotel 
efficient and economically viable as a project.” 

The physical design of the tower is also crucial to the success of the development. Both the 
Downtown Plan and the OCP encourage the development of slender tower forms, as opposed to 
lower, bulkier buildings, with the aim of protecting privacy, reducing visual impact and 
shadowing. The applicant team has explored a variety of building forms in an effort to meet this 
direction. The team has arrived at a tower design whose central form is an ellipse, which allows 
the tower to be oriented such that it presents a very narrow silhouette when viewed from the 
east (downtown) or west (lake). The north and south elevations of the tower are accented by a 
staggered pattern of balconies, which also assist in breaking down the monolithic form of the 
ellipse.  

The tower will contain the vast majority of hotel units. Nearer the base, the uses of the tower 
begins to shift towards more general hotel uses, including the lobby, hospitality suite, fitness 
centre and spa, and hotel offices. The core of the tower consists of a staircase and three 
elevators. Rooms surround this central core, with a range of between 2-13 hotel units per floor. 

A white composite panelling and glazing will form the principal materials used on the tower. 
Major engineered wood elements will accent the tower at its top and base. Balconies on the 
tower will feature coloured glass privacy screens, and the underside of the balconies will be 
finished in wood. 

  

9



OCP14-0005 / Z14-0006 – Page 6 

 
 

 

The Podium: 

The hotel tower is set within a 5 storey podium that contains a core of vehicle parking wrapped 
by commercial retail and conference uses. When viewed at the finer scale of the blocks 
immediately surrounding the site, the impact of the podium component of the development is 
more significant. While the tower is most impactful when viewed from a distance and its 
footprint only occupies a portion of the site, the podium covers the entire site. Indeed, it is the 
podium that meets adjacent public space directly, and it is the portion of the building with which 
members of the public will interact most directly. With this in mind, the podium must unify and 
enhance the urban fabric of its immediate vicinity.  

The massing of existing buildings in the general vicinity of the subject site is typically in the 
range of 1-6 storeys. Buildings along Bernard Avenue in particular are of a limited height, 
reflecting their heritage character. Development in these areas presents a consistent street wall, 
with most buildings having no setback from property lines. In some cases, and particularly along 
Bernard Avenue, storefronts are relatively narrow, and often feature residential or office uses on 
upper floors. Moving north of Bernard, buildings tend to be less narrow, single-use structures 
more suited to office uses and reflective of later phases of downtown development. 

The west side of the proposed building interacts directly with Kerry Park. Where there is 
presently a road (Mill Street) separating the site from Kerry Park, the proposal aims to bring the 
podium of the development to meet the eastern limit of Kerry Park. As the “keystone” to the 
downtown waterfront, Kerry Park is very well used by residents and visitors and is home to 
regular festivals and activities in the summertime. The park contains “the Sails” and “Ogopogo” 
public art pieces, and also provides the only access/egress for the new Downtown Marina. While 
each face of the podium is important, it is perhaps the interface of the development with Kerry 
Park – with its heightened level of activity – that is the most crucial. 

Both the form and finishing of the podium structure respond well to the varied needs of their 
surroundings. This challenge is rendered all the more difficult, as the podium must also provide 
all the parking necessary for the hotel and associated uses. To achieve this, five levels of parking 
are wrapped by a commercial retail, restaurant, coffee shop, office, conference centre and hotel 
uses.  

The podium interface with Kerry Park (west elevation) receives the greatest level of attention, 
using curving forms that “reach out” to the park and that gradually decrease in height from 5 to 
one storey. The ground floor is highly active, featuring a coffee shop to the south, and 
restaurant, rotunda and bar moving along the building face to the north. Rooftops along this face 
are also vibrant spaces, providing outdoor rooftop deck areas for the various hotel uses in the 
upper levels of the podium. 

Moving on to the Queensway Avenue face of the building (north elevation), the podium 
transitions from an activated pedestrian space, to a design that responds to more of the 
functional needs of the hotel, including the main entry/lobby, vehicle entry and exit points, and 
the entry for the parkade. Despite these more functional needs, the architecture of the building 
maintains a human scale, and echoes the curvilinear designs from the west elevation. The tower 
meets the ground at northwest corner of the building, which contains the main entry and lobby 
for the hotel. This is accented by a large porte-cochère/entrance canopy that uses engineered 
wood to reflect the shapes of the Downtown Marina buildings and the light standards on Bernard. 
Above the main floor, hotel and conference centre uses look north onto Stuart Park with outdoor 
patios providing increased animation and building articulation. 

The east face of the podium building (east elevation) changes yet again and aims to bring the 
small scale retail environment from Bernard Avenue onto Water Street. Multiple commercial 

10



OCP14-0005 / Z14-0006 – Page 7 

 
 

 

retail units front directly onto Water Street at grade, with apartment/hotel units located above. 
The conference centre on the upper level completes this building face with an interesting 
architectural feature that is called the “kaleidoscope” by the applicant. The kaleidoscope is a 
small portion of the building enclosed in glass that projects from the building face at the 
conference level over the sidewalk. This is a small, but unique space that allows hotel users to 
interact with passersby downtown in a unique way. 

The south elevation of the building is the most utilitarian, as it faces directly onto the lane, and 
is generally not visible from most vantage points. This side of the building contains service access 
to the back of house operations of the hotel. The internal parkade structure faces onto the lane, 
so the applicant team has proposed using long, rectangular planting boxes to soften the building 
face and to provide visual interest.  

Overall, the scale of the podium fits well within its immediate context, providing critical building 
functions in a manner that respects its surroundings. While unified in an overall design concept, 
each building face adapts to its setting, whether that is a single storey coffee shop spilling onto 
Kerry Park, or a compact retail unit facing Water Street. As a contrast to the tower, the 
materials palette of the podium uses elements, such as engineered wood, wood-like panels, and 
stone, that serve to “ground” the development. These heavier grounding elements are mixed 
with large glazed surfaces that promote transparency and enhance surrounding public 
environments. 

Development Impacts: 

The subject property is a prominent site near the waterfront of the downtown core. The site is 
presently underdeveloped, containing a parking lot and a single storey commercial building 
fronting Water Street. The proposed development represents a major, positive advancement 
from this use. Notwithstanding the fact that a tower development was anticipated for the site by 
both the Downtown Plan and the OCP, the proposal will have impacts on Kelowna from multiple 
fronts. As noted previously, the Downtown Plan outlines some of the impacts that tower 
development can have and suggests issues that should be thoroughly examined when considering 
tower development, including: contextual fit into the surrounding urban fabric, view impacts, 
shadowing of the public realm, overlook and privacy impacts on neighbouring buildings, impacts 
on the overall skyline, distance between adjacent tall buildings, and impacts on adjacent or 
nearby heritage structures. Each of these is addressed below. 

Contextual fit and skyline: Both in its tower and podium designs, the proposal makes a significant 
positive effort to respond to its varied context, whether that be through the introduction of at-
grade retail fronting Water Street, or through the use of materials that reflect the Okanagan 
landscape. The tower also fits well within the Kelowna skyline, as indicated previously.  

View impacts: Reducing the view impact of the proposal was one of the driving factors behind 
the elliptical shape of the tower. This shape presents is narrowest face along the east-west axis, 
which preserves view corridors both to and from the lake. 

Shadowing: Even though the tower is not the component of the building most directly 
experienced by pedestrians, it does have an impact on the pedestrian realm through shadowing. 
Shadowing is an important consideration in the design and placement of towers, as the 
cumulative impact of tower development can mean that the streets and public spaces below 
have limited sun exposure. The applicant has conducted a shadow analysis to identify the impact 
of the building at varying times of day over different seasons. According to this analysis, the 
shadow impact of the development will be directed mostly towards the Queensway jetty and the 
southern portions of Stuart Park. 

11



OCP14-0005 / Z14-0006 – Page 8 

 
 

 

Overlook and privacy: The only interface challenge presented by the development is where the 
proposed building interfaces with the existing Kelly O’Bryan’s restaurant. In this case, the 
applicant team worked with the ownership of Kelly O’Bryan’s in order to guarantee the views and 
privacy of Kelly O’Bryan’s patrons. To achieve this, the proposal steps the building down to a 
single storey. Staff do not anticipate any privacy concerns for any other nearby buildings. 

Building separation: The aim of this criterion is to ensure that tall buildings are separated and 
staggered such that they do not form a “wall”, eliminating view corridors and severely shadowing 
the public realm. In this case, this is the first tower in the vicinity, so the criterion will likely be 
more applicable as additional towers are developed in the future in accordance with the 
Downtown Plan. 

Heritage Impact: Bernard Avenue contains a number of significant heritage buildings; however, 
none of these is directly impacted by the proposal. 

Moving beyond the above areas of interest, one of the most significant areas of change is the 
interface of the building with Kerry Park. Where Mill Street presently divides commercial 
development from the park, the proposal will see the closure of the majority of Mill Street, 
bringing active uses into direct contact with Kerry Park. Ensuring that the development 
interfaces successfully with Kerry Park is a important challenge for the project. The approach 
taken by the applicant has been to provide a very high level of activity fronting the park, 
“reaching out” into the park to blur the line between public and private, and indoor and outdoor 
space. As a result, both the look and feel of the park will change. It will become a more active, 
vibrant space with residents and visitors migrating to and from the hotel and park-front 
commercial uses. Several tiers of rooftop decks will overlook the park.  

In addition to visual and park interface changes, the applicant has provided a study that suggests 
that the project will provide significant and ongoing economic benefit to the city (see attached 
Economic Impact Analysis). According to the report, the construction phase of development will 
result in a total of 721 jobs created, and a total investment of $112.2 million. In terms of the 
ongoing operating benefits of the hotel, it is expected to 299 total jobs and $17.7 million 
annually. 

The applicant has also provided a Transportation Impact Analysis (TIA), which evaluates the 
impact of the proposal (including the closure of Mill Street) on the City’s transportation network. 
Even with the closure of Mill Street, downtown intersections are predicted to operate within 
capacity. It should be noted that the closure of Mill Street will result in the loss of 22 parking 
stalls. The applicant has committed to securing an equal number of stalls within the development 
for public parking use.  

4.3 Site Context 

The subject site consists of five lots, as well as an area of road to be closed, totaling 
approximately 4,448 m2 of land area. The site is located in the Waterfront District of Kelowna’s 
downtown, between Water and Mill Streets and Bernard and Queensway Avenues. The site is 
bounded on the south by a service lane. 

Presently, the site contains an at-grade parking lot and a single storey commercial building 
fronting Water Street. However, the site has a rich history dating back to 1928, when the original 
Willow Inn Hotel was opened. The hotel remained a focal point for waterfront activity downtown 
for decades to come. After years of decline, the hotel was finally demolished in 2008/2009. 

The site contains multiple zones, with the majority being C7 or C7lp/rls. Only a small portion of 
the road right-of-way is zoned P3. Consistent with this, the OCP designation for the majority of 
the site is MXR, with only a small portion of road right-of-way being designated PARK. 

12



OCP14-0005 / Z14-0006 – Page 9 

 
 

 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North 
P3 – Parks and Open Space 
P1 – Major Institutional  

Stuart Park 
City Hall 

East C7 – Central Business Commercial  
BC Tree Fruits 
Queensway Transit Terminal 
Sturgeon Hall, Bordello’s 

South 

C7 – Central Business Commercial 
C7lp/rls - Central Business 
Commercial (Liquor Primary/Retail 
Liquor Sales) 

Bank of Montreal 
Bernard Ave retail & food primary 
(various) 

West P3 – Parks and Open Space Kerry Park 

 

Subject Property Map: Downtown Hotel Proposal 
 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA 
C7lp/rls ZONE 

REQUIREMENTS 
PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 200 m2 4,476 m2 

Lot Width 6.0 m 94.51 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 78.38 m 

Development Regulations 
Total Units - 214 

13



OCP14-0005 / Z14-0006 – Page 10 

 
 

 

Floor Area Ratio 9.0 7.3 

Height 22.0 m 24 storeys / 83.995 m 

Front Yard 0.0 m 0.0 m 

Side Yard (west) 0.0 m 0.0 m 

Side Yard (east) 0.0 m 0.0 m 

Rear Yard 0.0 m 0.0 m 

Setback above 15.0 m: 
- Abutting a street 

 
3.0 

 
0.0 m* 

Setback above 22.0 m: 
- From an internal lot line 
- From a lane 

 
15.0 m 
10.0 m 

 
Exceeds 

0.0 m (for 675mm)* 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements 250 stalls 242 stalls + 8 cash-in-lieu 

Bicycle Parking 
13 Class I 
14 Class II 

17 Class I 
18 Class II 

Private Open Space 555 m2 4,365.76 m2 

Loading Space 8 spaces 3 spaces 

 Indicates a requested variance to the maximum height of buildings and structures from 22.0m permitted to 83.995m proposed.  

 Indicates a requested variance to the minimum building setback above 15.0m abutting a street from 3.0m required to 0.0m 

proposed. This variance is triggered by 8 minor encroachments into the required setback. These are illustrated in the attached 

Variance Analysis. 

 Indicated a requested variance to the minimum building setback from a lane for portions of a building over 22.0 m in height 

from 10.0 m permitted to 0.0 m proposed. This variance is triggered by a portion of the parkade structure that encroaches into the 

setback by a total of 675mm. This is illustrated in the attached Variance Analysis. 

5.0 Current Development Policies   

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Ensure appropriate and context sensitive built form.2 

Public Space.3 Integrate safe, high-quality, human-scaled, multiuse public spaces, such as parks, 
plazas and squares, as part of development or redevelopment within Urban and Village Centres. 

Ensure that Urban Centres develop as vibrant commercial nodes.4 

Encourage uses and commercial ventures that promote local tourism.5 

Visitor Accommodation.6 Consider allowing visitor accommodation along the shore zone provided 
that such a use protects the riparian area, would be compatible with the neighbourhood and site 
context, and public enjoyment 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process). 
2
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 5.5 (Development Process). 

3
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.8.1 (Development Process). 

4
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 5.25 (Development Process). 

5
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 5.26 (Development Process). 

14



OCP14-0005 / Z14-0006 – Page 11 

 
 

 

Sustainable Prosperity.7 Assign priority to supporting the retention, enhancement and expansion 
of existing businesses and post secondary institutions and the attraction of new businesses and 
investment identified as bringing sustainable prosperity to Kelowna. 

5.2 Kelowna Downtown Plan 

Building Heights.8 Allow building heights to reach a maximum of the heights noted on Map 3 
(unless existing zoning provides for greater heights). To achieve those heights, Council may 
consider variances from the heights set out in the Zoning Bylaw, provided that the additional 
height (beyond that provided in the Zoning Bylaw) results in the creation of affordable housing or 
yields other significant community benefits and is appropriate from the perspective of the 
following considerations: 

• Contextual fit into the surrounding urban fabric  
• Shadowing of the public realm  
• View impacts  
• Overlook and privacy impacts on neighbouring buildings  
• Impacts on the overall skyline  
• Distance between adjacent tall buildings  
• Impacts on adjacent or nearby heritage structures  
• Building form and massing to mitigate negative impacts of tall building. 

Tower Separation.9 Require, where height variances are sought, that a minimum separation 
distance of 36.5 m (120 ft.) be provided between adjacent towers where there are floor plates 
larger than 697 sq. m (7,500 sq. ft.) and a minimum separation distance of 30.5 m (100 ft) will be 
sought between towers where floor plates are less than 697 sq. m. (7500 sq. ft.). 

Tall Buildings/Block.10 Limit the number of taller buildings on any long blocks (typ. 270m long) to 
5 towers per block.  

Willow Inn Site.11 Allow up to 19 storeys on the former Willow Inn site at the corner of 
Queensway Avenue and Mill Street upon demonstration that the proposed development gives 
careful consideration to view impacts from other parts of downtown, is a signature landmark 
building and that it meets a high standard of design excellence.  

Retail Corridors.12 Encourage retail uses to locate on designated Retail Corridors as noted in red 
on Map 5. Encourage a second strong retail anchor at the east end of Bernard Avenue to 
complement Safeway and to support Bernard Avenue as the primary Downtown retail corridor. 
Discourage new financial institutions and offices on the ground floor of buildings within the retail 
area show on Map 5 (ATMs are not included in this policy). Financial institutions and offices are 
better situated as ground floor uses outside of the retail area or on floors above-grade within the 
retail area. 

6.0 Technical Comments   

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

                                                                                                                                                                                 
6
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.26.2 (Development Process). 

7
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 8.1.1 (Economic Development). 

8
 City of Kelowna Downtown Plan, Policy 12. 

9
 City of Kelowna Downtown Plan, Policy 13. 

10
 City of Kelowna Downtown Plan, Policy 14. 

11
 City of Kelowna Downtown Plan, Policy 15. 

12
 City of Kelowna Downtown Plan, Policy 30. 

15



OCP14-0005 / Z14-0006 – Page 12 

 
 

 

Comments to be provided during Development Permit process. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

See attached Development Engineering Memoranda, dated April 28, 2014. 

6.3 Bylaw Services 

No comments received. 

6.4 Fire Department 

See attached letter, dated February 21, 2014. 

6.5 Interior Health Authority 

See attached letter, dated March 17, 2014. 

6.6 FortisBC (electric) 

Due to the size of the development there is potential for offsite upgrade requirements.  Further, 
previous comments provided with respect to the proposed road closure area remain accurate 
(email forwarded below).  Again, there are significant underground primary facilities servicing 
Kerry Park and various other properties in the area, including several owned by the City of 
Kelowna which will have to be moved to accommodate this development.  The applicant is 
responsible for costs associated with any change to the existing service as well as the provision of 
appropriate land rights where required.  

In the interim, FortisBC Inc. (electric) requests appropriate land rights to protect those facilities 
and services to neighbouring properties affected by the proposed development. 

It should be noted that additional land rights issues may arise from the design process but can be 
dealt with at that time, prior to construction.   

6.7 Telus 

TELUS will provide underground facilities to this development.  Developer will be required to 
supply and install conduit as per TELUS policy. 

6.8 Shaw 

No Concern. 

6.9 Ministry of Transportation 

Approval from the Ministry of Transportation was received on April 24, 2014. 

6.10 RCMP 

No Concerns. 
 

7.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received: February 17, 2014 

16



OCP14-0005 / Z14-0006 – Page 13 

 
 

 

Advisory Design Team:  March 13, 2014 

Public Notification & Consultation: Public Information Session held on March 12, 2014 

Report prepared by: 

     
James Moore, Planner II  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  D. Gilchrist, Div. Dir. Of Community Planning & Real Estate 
 
  

Attachments:   

Subject Property Map 
Map A – Proposed OCP 
Map B – Proposed Zoning 
Project Rationale 
Road Closure Plan 
Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Landscape Plan 
Context/Site Photos 
Renderings 
Shadow Analysis 
Variance Analysis 
Economic Impact Analysis, prepared by Grant Thornton LLP, dated January 30, 2014 
DRAFT - Transportation Impact Analysis 
Community Consultation Summary 
Development Engineering Memoranda, dated April 28, 2014 
Letter from the Interior Health Authority, dated March 17, 2014 
Letter from the Kelowna Fire Department, dated February 21, 2014 

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 5/2/2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: Z14-0014 Owner: Jenzen, Henry & Ingrid  

Address: 890 Mayfair Avenue Applicant: Jenzen, Henry 

Subject: Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RU1c – Large Lot Housing with Carriage House 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Rezoning Application No. Z14-0014 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 9, District Lot 143, ODYD, Plan 24833, located on 890 
Mayfair Avenue, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU1c – Large Lot 
Housing with Carriage House zone be considered by Council; 

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be subsequent to the requirements of the 
Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction.  

2.0 Purpose  

The purpose of the application is to consider a rezoning to add the ‘c’ designation to the RU1 – 
Large Lot Housing zone of the subject property in order to convert an existing accessory building 
into a carriage house. 

3.0 Urban planning 

Staff support the proposed rezoning to allow a carriage house on the subject property. The 
subject property has a future land use designation of Single / Two Unit Residential (S2Res) in the 
current Official Community Plan (OCP) and is currently zoned RU1.  The property is within the 
Permanent Growth Boundary. 

The proposed use is consistent with the OCP definition of S2RES as well as OCP Policy 5.22.12 
“Carriage Houses & Accessory Apartments” which supports carriage houses and accessory 
apartments through appropriate zoning regulations. There are numerous RU6 & RU1c properties 

96



Z14-0014 – Page 2 

 
along the west side of Mayfair Road. These properties and the proposed carriage house are 
located adjacent to existing and future industrial uses to the west. The applicant is aware that 
there may be impacts from ongoing or future industrial operations immediately adjacent. 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours as described in the attached 
Schedule ‘A’. No major issues were identified during consultation with neighbouring parcels.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The applicant wishes to convert an existing accessory building into a carriage house. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is approximately 990 m2 in area. The subject property has residential areas 
located to the north, south, and east. The properties to the west are predominately zoned A1-
Agricultural however they are utilized as existing and future industrial land uses. Specifically, the 
neighbouring land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
RU1c – Large Lot Housing with Carriage House 
RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Residential 

East RU1 – Large Lot Housing Residential 

South 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Residential 

West A1- Agriculture Industrial 

 

Subject Property Map: 890 Mayfair Road 

 

97



Z14-0014 – Page 3 

 
4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
 Principal Bldg Carriage House Principal Bldg Carriage House 

Maximum Height 
9.5 m or 2.5 

storeys 
4.5 m 5.5 m (1 story) 4.5 m 

Minimum Front Yard 
Setback 

4.5 m 9.0m 7.6 m 37.1 m 

Minimum Side Yard 
(north) Setback 

2.0 m for 1 / 1.5 storeys 
2.3m for 2 / 2.5 storeys 

1.8 m 9.9 m 

Minimum Side Yard 
(south) Setback 

4.5m for building / 6.0m for Garage  3.0 m 1.3 m 

Minimum Rear Yard 
Setback 

7.5 m 1.5 m 23.2 m 1.5 m 

Site coverage of buildings  40 % 20.0 % 

Site coverage of all 
accessory buildings 

14 % / 90.0 m2 8.5 % / 84.7 m2 

Site coverage of 
buildings, driveways & 

parking 
50 % <50.0 % 

Lot Area 550 m2 990 m2 

Lot Width 16.5 m 19.8 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 50.3 m 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking 

Requirements 
2 stalls for SFD / 1 Stall for 

Carriage 
3 

Distance between units 4.5 m 14.0 m 

Private Open Space 30 m2 / dwelling unit 46 m2  / dwelling unit 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height, and siting. 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

98



Z14-0014 – Page 4 

 
6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits. 

 Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British Columbia 
Building Code (BCBC 12). 

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications.  

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached 

6.3 Fire Department 

 Requirements of section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BCBC 2012 are to be met. If a fence 
is ever constructed between the dwellings a gate with a clear width of 1100mm is 
required. Any gate is to open without special knowledge. Additional visible address is 
required from Mayfair Rd. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: April 9th 2014 
Date of Public consultation: May 15th 2014 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner I  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Supervisor - Urban Planning  
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Manager - Urban Planning 

Attachments:  

Application Package 
Development Engineering Memo 
 
 

99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 5/5/2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: Z14-0015 Owner: Susan Bennett  

Address: 2248 Abbott St. Applicant: Steven & Loretta Nicholson 

Subject: Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation: S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

Proposed Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Rezoning Application No. Z14-0015 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Lot 24, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 535, located on 2248 
Abbott Street, Kelowna, BC from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU6 – Two Dwelling 
Housing zone be considered by Council; 

AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration; 

AND THAT final adoption of the Zone Amending Bylaw be subsequent to the requirements 
Development Engineering Branch being completed to their satisfaction.  

2.0 Purpose  

The purpose of the application is to consider a rezoning from RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the 
RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing which would allow a duplex to be built on the subject property. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

Staff are supportive of the proposed rezoning to allow a duplex on the subject property. The 
proposal is consistent with the Official Community Plan (OCP) Future Land Use designation for 
the area. There is one example of a nearby RU6 development in the immediate vicinity which is 
located at 384 Glenwood Avenue (the applicant also developed this property). 

The application does not require any variances to the Zoning Bylaw. The application does require 
a Heritage Alteration Permit (HAP) which will address the form and character of the new 
development. The HAP was reviewed by the Community Heritage Committee (CHC) on May 1st 
and passed a resolution approving of the design in principal but required the applicant to submit 

113



Z14-0015 – Page 2 

 
full colour renderings prior to issuing the permit. This will not affect the overall application 
timeline as the next Community Heritage Committee meeting is June 5th 2014. 

In fulfillment of Council Policy No. 367 respecting public consultation, the applicant undertook 
neighbour consultation by individually contacting the neighbours as described in the attached 
Schedule ‘A’. No major issues were identified during consultation with neighbours.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The subject property presently contains one single detached dwelling. The applicant is proposing 
a rezoning of the property to RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing in order to allow a duplex be built. The 
existing dwelling is to be essentially demolished with the retention of the existing foundation.  

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is approximately 971 m2 in area. The OCP designates the subject property 
S2RES – Single / Two Unit Residential, the lot is within the Permanent Growth Boundary, and the 
lot is within the Abbott Street Conservation Area.  

The property is bordered by residential uses to the north, hospital uses to the east and a park to 
the south which includes a parking lot immediately adjacent to the subject property. The City is 
building a trail between this property and the lake. The applicant is aware of this project and has 
planned their onsite landscaping to fit. Specifically, the adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single detached dwelling development 

East HD1 – Kelowna General Hospital Institutional 

South P3 – Parks and Open Space Park 

West City Park and Okanagan Lake Future public trail 

 

Subject Property Map: 2248 Abbott Street 

 

114



Z14-0015 – Page 3 

 
4.3 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Height 9.5 m or 2.5 storeys 8.3 m 

Front Yard 6.0 m 7.0 m 

Side Yard  
2.0 m for 1 / 1.5 storeys 
2.3m for 2 / 2.5 storeys 

Varies between 2.0 m & 7.0 m 

Rear Yard 7.5 m 20.0 m 

Site coverage of buildings  40 % 37.6 % 

Site coverage of buildings, 
driveways & parking 

50 % 49.9% 

Lot Area 800 m2 969.6 m2 

Lot Width 20.0 m 20.07 m 

Lot Depth 30.0 m 48.3 m 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking 

Requirements 
2 stalls / Duplex Unit = 4 stalls 4 

Private Open Space 30 m2 / dwelling unit Greater than 30 m2  / dwelling unit 

*Variance Requested 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height, and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

 Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permits. 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.3.2 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

115



Z14-0015 – Page 4 

 

 Operable bedroom windows required as per the 2012 edition of the British Columbia 
Building Code (BCBC 12). 

 Potential spatial separation issues with glazing at the decks which may affect form and 
character.  

 Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building Permit 
applications.  

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

 See attached 

6.3 Fire Department 

 Requirements of section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BCBC 2012 are to be met. Ensure 
proper addressing off of Abbott Street. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:    April 15th 2014 
Date of Public consultation:    April 15th 2014 
Date of Community Heritage Committee Meeting:  May 1st 2014 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner I  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Ryan Smith, Manager - Urban Planning  
 

Approved for Inclusion:  D. Gilchrist, Divisional Director - 
 Community Planning & Real Estate 

 

Attachments:  

Site Plan / Landscape Plan 
Colour Board 
Conceptual Elevations 
Development Engineering Comments 
 
 
 

116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



Report to Council 
 

 
Date: 

 
6/9/2014 
 

File: 
 

1250-30 

To:  
 

City Manager 

From: 
 

Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS) 

Address: 1800 Crosby Rd 
 

Application: OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004 

Subject: 

 

Supplemental Report  

 

Recommendation: 
 
THAT Council receives, for information, the Supplemental Report from the Subdivision, 
Agriculture & Environment Services Department dated May 30, 2014 with respect to proposed 
amendments to Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Application No. OCP13-0003 and 
Rezoning Application No. Z13-0004 for the property located at 1800 Crosby Road; 
 
AND THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw (Bylaw No. 10960) and the 
Zone Amending Bylaw (Bylaw No. 10961) be forwarded for amendment consideration; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the Official Community Plan Bylaw Amendment Bylaw and the Zone 
Amending Bylaw, as amended, be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration. 
 
Purpose: 
  
To consider a request by the applicant to amend the original application and to forward the 
revised application to the next Public Hearing.  
 
Background: 
 
At a Regular Meeting held on Monday, May 5th, Council granted 1st Reading to the proposal by 
DRS Ventures Ltd to amend the future land use and zoning in order to permit the 
development of 12 lot development on 1880 Crosby Road.  Following comments received from 
Council and interaction with the public the applicant has agreed to amend their application 
such that the footprint of the proposed subdivision will be reduced and more Major Park / 
Open Space will be dedicated to the City. 
 
Staff acknowledge that this additional gain to Major Park / Open Space of approximately 3.6 
ha, together with the blanket Statutory Right of Way and No Build No Disturb Covenant on the 
parent remainder, presents a balanced approach that achieves the policy intent of the OCP to 
preserve parks and open space, contribute to a green connection between Knox Mountain 

129



Park and Stephen’s Coyote Ridge Regional Park, and provide a reasonable solution to the 
topographical and access challenges to the site.  As such, staff supports the updated proposal. 
 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted by:  
 
 
______________________ 
Todd Cashin, Manager 
 
 
 
Approved for inclusion:                 Shelley Gambacort, Director 
 
 
Attachments: 
 
 
cc:  
 
Terry Barton, Parks & Public Places Manager 
Steve Muenz, Development Engineering Manager 

  

130



131



132



133



S
U

P
E

R
C

E
E

D
E

D

134



R
E

V
IS

E
D

 -
 J

U
N

E
 2

01
4

135



S
U

P
E

R
C

E
E

D
E

D

136



R
E

V
IS

E
D

 P
LA

N
 -

 J
U

N
E

 2
01

4

137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 4/28/2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS) 

Application: OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004 Owner:  DRS Ventures Ltd, 

Address: 1800 Crosby Road Applicant: DE Pilling and Associates 

Subject: OCP Amendment and Rezoning Application   

Existing OCP Designation: 
Single/Two Unit Residential 
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 

 
Major Park/Open Space 
 

Proposed OCP 
Designation: 

Single/Two Unit Residential 
Multiple Unit Residential (Low Density) 
Major Park/Open Space 

Existing Zone: A1 – Agriculture 1 

Proposed Zone: P3 – Parks and Open Space 
RU2 – Medium Lot Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT OCP Bylaw Amendment No. OCP13-0003 to amend Map 4.1 of the Kelowna 2020 - Official 
Community Plan Bylaw No. 7600 by changing the Future Land Use designation of a part of the 
South East ¼ of Section 5 TWP 23 ODYD Except Plan 896, located at 1800 Crosby Road, Kelowna, 
B.C., from the current Single/Two Unit Residential - Hillside and Park - Major Park/Open Space 
designation to the proposed Single/Two Unit Residential and Park - Major Park/Open Space 
configuration, as shown on “Map A” attached to the report, dated September 2013, be 
considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT Council considers the public consultation process to be appropriate for the purpose of 
Section 879 of the Local Government Act, as outlined in the Report of the Subdivision, 
Agriculture & Environment Services Branch dated April 28, 2014; 
  
AND THAT Rezoning Application No. Z13-0004 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 by changing the zoning classification of a part of the South East ¼ of Section 5 Township 23 
ODYD Except Plan 896, located at 1800 Crosby Road, Kelowna, B.C., from A1 - Agriculture 1 to 
the P3 – Parks and Open Space and RU2 – Medium Lot Housing as shown on “Map B” attached to 
the report, dated September 2013, be considered by Council. 
 

145



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 2 

 
 

AND THAT final adoption of the zone amending bylaw be considered after the issuance of a 
Natural Environment Development Permit; 
 
AND FURTHER THAT final adoption of the zone amending bylaw be considered subsequent to the 
requirements of the Development Engineering Branch, Infrastructure Planning Branch, Real 
Estate Branch and Glenmore Ellison Improvement District being completed to their satisfaction. 

2.0 Purpose  

The applicant is proposing to amend the future land use and zoning to accommodate a 12 lot 
development on a portion of the subject property in the Glenmore area.   

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services Comments 

The Glenmore Highlands Area Structure Plan (ASP) encompasses the subject property and 
provides the framework for land use on the subject property (Ekistics, 2000). The original ASP for 
the parent parcel identified different land uses for the property including park, single family 
residential, and multi-family residential – low density.  The location of the proposed 
development is perched above existing development located on the valley floor and this site 
would be highly visible along a well established urban single family vs. open space boundary. 
 
The current future land use map for this portion of the property assigns Major Park /Open Space 
land use. The proposed development site would gain access from Crosby Road.  The OCP 
amendment would change approximately 5.6 ha from Single / Two Family Residential into Major 
Park / Open Space, and be dedicated to the City of Kelowna.  
 
Staff acknowledge the landowners expectation that portions of the parent parcel would be 
developed as identified in the Area Structure Plan and Official Community Plan. Staff recognize 
the proposed development area is the most suitable location for residential development from a 
development perspective, taking into consideration the ease of access, existing services, and the 
comparatively low environmental sensitivity rating.  However, this area is also the most suitable 
for an easily accessible park and staging area.   
 
Support for policy amendments is generally considered in terms of the net impact of the 
development and consistency with other relevant policies.  Accordingly, the proposed 
development must represent a clear benefit to the City and its residents and must be justifiable.  
The proposal results in a net gain of approximately 3.6 ha of land that had a future land use 
designation for Single / Two Family Residential changed to Major Park / Open Space, with the 
proposed 14.27 ha Park / Open Space area to be dedicated to the City of Kelowna.  The 
environmental rating of the new proposed park area is primarily High Environmentally Sensitive 
Area (ESA), with some Moderate ESA, according to the Environmental Assessment Report1.  The 
new proposed Single / Two Family Residential area of 1.99 ha is rated as primarily low ESA. 
 
In sum, Staff acknowledges that the net gain to Major Park / Open Space of approximately 3.6 
ha, together with the blanket Statutory Right of Way and No Build No Disturb Covenant on the 
parent remainder, presents a balanced approach that achieves the policy intent of the OCP to 
preserve parks and open space, contribute to a green connection between Knox Mountain Park 
and Stephen’s Coyote Ridge Regional Park, and provide a reasonable solution to the 
topographical and access challenges to the site.  As such, staff supports the proposal as 
described. 
                                                      
1 Ecoscape, 2007. Environmental Assessment Report and Sensitivity Analysis, prepared for DRS Ventures Ltd.  

146



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 3 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The subject property at 1800 Crosby Road is located in the northern region of the City in the OCP 
Sector “Glenmore - Clifton – Dilworth”.  The subject property is a hillside property in the area 
commonly referred to as Glenmore and is 35.75 hectares in size.  Much of the site is 
topographically challenged with elevations ranging between approximately 423 metres at the low 
point located near the terminus of existing Crosby Road along the eastern boundary, and 
approximately 571 metres in the northwest corner.  This significant difference (148 meters) in 
elevation means that steep slopes are prevalent throughout the property with approximately 23.3 
hectares (65% of the area) in excess of 30% slopes.  Coarse and fine talus, exposed bedrock and 
rocky outcrops resulting in hazardous conditions and the sensitive habitats synonymous with 
steep slopes are dispersed throughout the site.  Other natural features on the subject property 
include three distinct wetlands which encompass approximately 1.15 hectares or 3.2% of the site 
area. (See Table 1). 
 
The Glenmore Highlands Area Structure Plan (ASP) was developed in 2000 for a 720 hectare 
subject area dominated by hillside terrain and containing a primarily coniferous woodland forest.  
The subject property was included in the Glenmore Highlands ASP which also includes the Wilden 
developments. 
 
The ASP addressed a modest level of detail with respect to the hillside development and 
contemplated two forms of residential development on this parent property in the form of 
clustered single family development at five units per hectare (5uph), and clustered single/multi-
family at 10 units per hectare (10uph) density. The Plan broadly considered potential locations 
for residential development and natural parks and open space at a coarse scale with detailed 
studies not having been completed.  Notably, the portion of the parcel under application was 
specifically designated as Parks and Open Space, and accordingly the Area Structure Plan has 
since become the basis for the line work used to generate the Future Land Use Map (Map 19.1) in 
the current Official Community Plan.   
 
Glenmore Road is the major north/south arterial in this region and would facilitate the majority 
of traffic movement generated by this development.  The subject property is located directly 
adjacent to an existing, well established community in Glenmore with homes having been 
established and occupied since the late 1970’s.  The subject property is presently only accessible 
from Crosby Road via Glenmore with no access from the west. 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing to rezone the subject property, subdivide and develop a 1.99 hectare 
portion of the 35.75 hectare subject property.  The intent is to develop the lower site as a 12 
unit single family development.  As the OCP future land use for the proposed development parcel 
is not consistent with the proposed use, the primary consideration is the amendment of 1.99 ha 
of future land use designation to single / two unit residential use from major park/open space, 
with the exchange of approximately 5.6 ha of existing single / two unit residential according to 
the future land use designation, with a total of 14.27 ha being dedicated to the City of Kelowna 
as park.  The proposed lot configuration and proximity to existing established low density 
residential development is illustrated below.  
 

147



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 4 

 
 

Map 1: Location and Configuration of Proposed Lot and Dwelling Units 

 
 
 
The applicants have undertaken a number of studies in support of their applications including 
geotechnical and environmental studies.  An environmental assessment was conducted in 2007 
for the parent parcel and quantifies the environmentally sensitive areas on the property.  The 
Environmentally Sensitive Area (ESA) results are showed in the table below. 
 

Table 1. Environmental Sensitivity Analysis 

Environmental Sensitivity Area (hectares) Percentage 

Very High 1.15 3.2% 

High 20.09 55.4% 

Moderate 14.09 38.9% 

Low 0.91 2.5% 

 
The environmental assessment conclusions correlate with the City’s Sensitive Ecosystem 
Inventory and the City’s Wetland Inventory.  As proposed, the majority of the development is 
sited on the only area that has a ‘low’ environmental sensitivity rating, however, the proposal 
will encroach on an area of high environmental sensitivity.  The parkland proposed for dedication 
is rated as high environmental sensitivity. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located between the established neighbourhoods of Glenmore and 
Wilden, within the Glenmore, Clifton, Dilworth Sector. The immediate adjacent zones and uses 
are indicated in the table below. 

 

148



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 5 

 
 

Table 2: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 
North P3 – Parks & Open Space Natural Open Space 

East 
RU1 – Large Lot Housing 
RU2 – Medium Lot Housing 

Single Family Housing 

South 
A1 – Agricultural 1 / RU6 – Two Dwelling 
Residential 

Natural Open Space / Single/Two 
Dwelling Residential 

West 
RU2H – Medium Lot Housing (Hillside) 
A1 – Agricultural 1 

Single Family Housing 
Natural Open Space 

 

Site Location Maps 

Based on the Glenmore Highlands ASP, the parent parcel has been assigned future land use 

designations of Multi-family – Low Density, Single/Two Family Residential, and Park/Open Space, 

as shown on Map 2, below.  

Map 2: Future Land Uses 

 
 

The neighbourhood context and land use is shown below on Map 3. 

 
  

Crosby Road 

Wilden Ridge Dr 

Proposed Development Area 

1.99 ha 

 

Wetlands 

City of Kelowna 

Property 

Wilden 

149



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 6 

 
 

Map 3: Land Use and Neighbourhood Context 

 

 

The site topography is shown in Map 3, below.  Each contour represents 5 metres of elevation. 

Map 4: Topography 

 

Proposed Development Area 

City of Kelowna Property 

Wilden 

Wilden 

150



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 7 

 
 

 

Map 5:  Wetland, and Environmental / Hazardous Development Permit Areas 

 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis 

The following table outlines the zoning requirements for RU2 – Medium Lot Housing: 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 400 m2 405 – 500 m2 

Lot Width 13 m 13.007 – 13.507 m 

Lot Depth 30 m 30.02 – 38.402 m 

Development Regulations 

Height 9.5 m m 

Front Yard 4.5 m (6.0 to garage / carport) 4.5 m (6.0 to garage / carport) 

Side Yard (1 ½ storey portion) 1.5 m 1.5 m 

Side Yard (2 ½ storey portion) 1.8 m 1.8 m 

Rear Yard (1 ½ storey portion) 6.0 m 6.0 m 

Rear Yard (2 ½ storey portion) 7.5 m 7.5 m 

Other Regulations: 

 There shall be no more than one single detached house per lot. 

 Parking and Loading section 8 requirements will apply. 

 

 

Wetlands 

Proposed Development Area 

151



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 8 

 
 

4.5 Public Consultation 

The applicant has undertaken a door to door public consultation program, for addresses within 50 
metres of the project site.  A letter, complete with the proposed OCP amendment package, was 
left if residents were not home, with contact information for both the applicant and the City of 
Kelowna file manager.  One letter was received by the City of Kelowna in response (attached). 

The applicant has provided a summary of the public consultation program (attached). 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

The Kelowna Official Community Plan designates the location of the proposed development on 
the subject property as Major Park & Open Space.  Application OCP10-0001 has been made to 
change the OCP designation to facilitate the proposed residential development, and to change 
existing Single/Two Family Residential area to Major Park / Open Space. 

 
7.1 Hillside Policies2  

7.1.1 Hazardous Condition Review. Ensure that all development and activities in hillside 
areas are reviewed for compliance with City engineering standards, safety and protection 
and refer applications to the Province in accordance with applicable requirements.  
7.1.2 Alternative Hillside Standards. Consider, within the context of a Hazardous 
Condition Development Permit, alternative hillside development standards within Zoning 
Bylaw 8000 and the Subdivision, Development and Servicing Bylaw 7900. The intent is to 
minimize the effects of development on the natural environment of hillside areas, defined 
as lands in their natural state that have a slope angle of 10% and greater for a minimum 
height of 6 metres while preserving areas with slopes of 30% and greater. Effects to be 
minimized may include cuts and fills, tree cutting, regrading and the visual impact in 
general of urban development on hillsides;  
 
7.10 Natural Environment Policies3  

7.10.10 Maintaining Biodiversity. Seek to maintain ecological linkages and biodiversity, 
including wildlife movement corridors and aquatic and terrestrial pathways, in all land use 
and development decisions; 
7.10.12 Retention of Natural Areas. Encourage all development and infrastructure 
projects to conserve wetlands, wildlife habitat, trees or other indigenous vegetation. 
Encourage alternative development methods, such as considering increasing density, 
narrowing right-of-ways, or cluster housing;  

 
8.1 Housing Policies4 

8.1.18 Housing Agreements.  Support the use of housing agreements to assist in creating 
affordable and special needs housing. 
8.1.32 Higher Density for Affordable Housing. Consider support for development of land 
involving an OCP amendment to increase the density by no more than two increments to a 
maximum density designation of Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) for proposals 
where 75% of the housing meets the City’s definition of affordable housing and/or core 

                                                      
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan – Environment; p. 7-1. 
3
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan – Environment; p. 7-13. 

4
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan – Housing; pp. 8-3, 8-4, 8-5. 

152



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 9 

 
 

needs housing as defined in the OCP (8.1.16 & 8.1.17). The development must meet the 
following conditions: 

 the density of the development can be sensitively integrated into the surrounding 
neighbourhood; 

 where a lot line abuts a lower density residential land uses designation, buildings 
facing this lot line within the development shall be stepped back such that there is 
no more than a one-storey height gain between these building frontages and the 
height permitted within the land uses assigned to adjacent parcels; and 

 height must be determined by the City as appropriate within the context of the 
adjacent land use designations; and 

 supporting infrastructure and park land is sufficient to accommodate the proposed 
development (or the developer is prepared to upgrade the necessary infrastructure 
and park land); and 

 a housing agreement must be entered into with the City and registered on title to 
secure the affordable dwellings for the long term. 

14.1 Parks and Leisure Policies5 

14.1.1 Parks and Open Space. Endeavour to provide a variety of parks and open spaces 
to meet the diverse needs of the community; 
14.1.28 Dedication of Natural Areas. At time of subdivision or rezoning, encourage 
landowners, where appropriate, to dedicate any significant natural areas / features for 
preservation or for public use;  
 

5.2 Glenmore Highlands Area Structure Plan (2000) 

Section 2.1.3 Wildlife6 

Wildlife Movement Corridors:  the ASP area wildlife movement occurs primarily in a north-
south direction between two areas of substantial habitat that are adjacent to the ASP 
area.  Knox Mountain Park is located to the south and Stephen’s Coyote Ridge Regional 
Park is situated to the north.  The maintenance of continuous vegetated corridors 
between these large reserves of natural habitat is critical to the maintenance of 
biodiversity and ecological viability within the ASP area. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Development Engineering Branch 

The Development Engineering Branch has indicated the following items are required for the 
development.  Please refer to the attached memo for a full description of requirements.  In 
summary, the following is required: 

 Installation of a centralized mail delivery station; 

 A geotechnical report to address slope stability and hydrological issues; 

 Satisfactory arrangements regarding flows and sizing infrastructure with Glenmore Ellison 
Irrigation District (GEID);  

 Adequately sized sanitary sewer system; 

                                                      
5 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan – Parks and Leisure; pp. 14-1, 14-4. 
6 Glenmore Highlands Area Structure Plan, Section 2 Context & Existing Conditions; p. 21. 

153



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 10 

 
 

 Adequately sized drainage system; 

 Grading plans; 

 Road dedication of Crosby Road Extension; 

 Power and telecommunication services and street lights; 

 Consulting Engineering Letter; 

 A Servicing Agreement, in accordance with Bylaw No. 7900; 

 Proposed Park dedicated to the City as a titled property and zoned P3 – Parks / Open 
Space; 

 Adequate road frontage to the park, including gating and signage; 

 Sidewalk; 

 Fuel reduction for forest health; and a 

 Fence between private property and the proposed park. 

6.2 Kelowna Fire Department 

Fire Department access, fire flows, and hydrants should be installed as per the BC Building Code 
and the City of Kelowna Subdivision Bylaw #7900. 

6.3 Parks and Building Planning Branch 

Parks has reviewed the development application and has provided the following comments and 
requirements: 
 

 The proposed park area shall be dedicated to the City as a titled property zoned P3 – 
Parks & Open Space and transferred as part of the Zoning Application; 

 The parkland shall be kept in a natural, undisturbed condition - no debris and garbage; no 
unauthorized tree cutting, no damage to natural vegetation, no material and construction 
storage and/or equipment parking; 

 Adequate road frontage will be required for the park entrance to provide public exposure, 
sightlines, security, and maintenance access; 

 The park road frontage will need to be fenced and gated for operations and security. 

 Fencing and vehicle gates shall be to City Standards; 

 5 parking stalls shall be provided for visitors to the park vehicles; 

 The sidewalk for the Crosby Road extension shall provide a connection between the 
existing sidewalk on Crosby and the front entrance to the park connecting to the existing 
old forestry road (e.g. park trail); 

 A  Blanket Statutory Right of Way (SROW) for public access shall be secured on the 
remainder of the upland portion of the subject property beyond the park dedication (e.g. 
future development lands); 

 A plan will be needed to address fuel reduction, forest health and the protection of 
significant characteristics of the forested area. All approved recommendations of the 
report shall be implemented prior to transfer in ownership of the lands to the City of 
Kelowna; and 

 To prevent private/public encroachment, the applicant will be required to delineate the 
private property lines adjacent to the park parcel with a minimum 1.2 m high (4’) high 

154



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 11 

 
 

black vinyl chain link fence (or approved equivalent) located 150 mm (6”) within the 
private property. 

6.4 Policy and Planning Department 

There is a positive benefit to the community in terms of public parkland.  By continuing Crosby 
Rd into the subdivision, this would allow public access to the existing trails.  Adding a temporary 
right-of-way over the trails as a condition of zoning would ensure public access to the existing 
trails. 
 

6.5 Subdivision Approving Officer 

The Subdivision Approving Officer has provided the following comments: 

 Development Cost Charges (DCCs) are payable at final subdivision approval; and 

 Ensure that through the OCP and rezoning process that the future Hepner Road does not 
fall within the open space or park future land use.  More specifically at the southwest side 
of the property.  The parks and open space area is touching the road without buffering. 

6.6 FortisBC – Electric 

FortisBC Inc. – Electric has no land rights concerns at this time.  It should be noted that land 
rights issues may arise from the design process but can be dealt with at that time, prior to 
construction.  

6.7 Interior Health Authority 

Interior Health Authority is in support of this application. 

6.8 Irrigation District 

The GEID require upgrades to water and fire protection system adequate to accommodate the 
proposed 12 lot subdivision and to facilitate adequate fire protection. 

6.9 Shaw Cable 

The owner / developer to install an underground conduit system. 

6.10 Telus 

Telus will provide underground facilities to this development.  The developer will be required to 
supply and install conduit as per Telus policy.   

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:       January 16, 2013 
 
Agency Referral Comments Received:      March 15, 2013 
 
Updated S/D Plans Submitted:       August 8, 2013 
 

155



OCP13-0003 & Z13-0004– Page 12 

 
 

Applicant advised to put on hold subject to meeting with Real Estate Staff: Sept. 27, 2013 
 
Agreed to move forward:         Jan. 21, 2014 
 
Public Consultation:          March 28 to April 18, 2014 
 
 

 

Report prepared by: 

     
Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner 
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services  
 
 
Reviewed by:  

 Todd Cashin, Manager, Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment 
 
Approved for Inclusion: 

 Shelley Gambacort, Director, Community Planning & Real Estate 
 
 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map (1 page) 
Site Plan (1 page) 
OCP Amendment ‘Map A’ (1 page) 
Zoning Amendment ‘Map B’ (1 page) 
Preliminary Lot Layout (1 page) 
Preliminary Lot Layout with Topography (1 page) 
Environmentally Sensitivity Analysis (Ecoscape, 2007) (1 page) 
Development Engineering Manager Memo (5 pages) 
Public Consultation Summary (17 pages) 

156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185


	Agenda
	3.1 2014 05 12 Report Z14-0006 OCP14-0005.docx
	3.1 2014 05 12 Attachments Z14-0006 OCP14-0005.pdf
	3.2 2014 06 09 Report Z14-0014 890 Mayfair Ave.docx
	3.2 2014 06 09 Attachments Z14-0014 890 Mayfair Ave.pdf
	3.3 2014 06 09 Report 2248 Abbott St.docx
	3.3 2014 06 09 Attachments Z14-0015 2248 Abbott St.pdf
	3.4 2014 05 05 Supplemental Report Z13-0004 1800 Crosby sh.docx
	3.4 2014 06 09 Attachments Z13-0004 OCP13-0003 1800 Crosby Rd - Supplementary Report.pdf
	3.4 2014 05 05 Report Z13-0004 OCP13-0003 1800 Crosby Rd.docx
	3.4 2014 04 29 Attachments Z13-0004 OCP13-0003 1800 Crosby Rd.pdf

